
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk 

To:  All Members of the Pennines Township 
Committee

Enquiries to: Peter Thompson
e-mail:              peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924715
Date: Thursday, 19th May 2016

Dear Councillor,

Pennines Township Committee

You are requested to attend a meeting of Pennines Township Committee to be 
held in the Hollingworth Rooms on the first floor of the Council Offices, 
Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU, on Tuesday, 31st 
May 2016, starting at 6.15pm.
 
The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Pennines Township Committee Membership 2016/17
Councillor Blundell
Councillor Butterworth
Councillor Clegg
Councillor Davidson
Councillor Dearnley
Councillor Emsley
Councillor Hartley
Councillor Hussain
Councillor Kelly
Councillor Mir
Councillor Paolucci-Escobar
Councillor Stott

Public Document Pack

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/
mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


Rochdale Borough Council

PENNINES TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 31st May 2016 at 6.15 pm

Hollingworth Rooms, Council Offices, Number One Riverside, Smith 
Street, Rochdale

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Appointment of the Chair of Pennines Township Committee 

2.  Appointment of the Vice Chair of Pennines Township 
Committee 

3.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 3

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

4.  Open Forum 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise 
any issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the 
Township.

5.  Changes to Local Policing Arrangements - Presentation 

Presentation by Officers from Greater Manchester Police

6.  Minutes 4 - 5

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held 8th 
March 2016.

7.  Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee 6 - 8



To note the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held 29th 
March 2016.

8.  Pennines Township Planning Sub-Committee 9 - 13

To note the Minutes of the meetings of the Sub-Committee held 28th 
January, 23rd March and 13th April 2016.

9.  Pennines Township Delegation Arrangements 2016/17 

10.  Pennines Township Committee – Appointments 2016/17 14 - 17

11.  Townships Plan 2015 & 2016 18 - 24

12.  Pennines Township Funds 2016/17 25 - 59

13.  Exclusion of Press and Public 

To consider excluding the press and public from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended.

14.  Shaw Road, Newhey - Options for the Future use and 
Development of Land Belonging to Dr Chadwick's Trust 

60 - 64



P
age 1

A
genda Item

 3



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 2



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 3



PENNINES TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
8th March 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Aftab Hussain (Chair); Councillors Blundell, Butterworth, 
Clegg, Dearnley, Emsley, Hartley, Kelly, Mir, Paolucci and Stott

OFFICERS:  F. Cowyn (Economy Directorate); P. Maynard, T. Knight, and Y. 
Pickering (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and M. Garraway (Resources Directorate).  

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  S. Parkington (Environment Agency), A. Shaw (Greater 
Manchester Police), 3 members of public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Brett

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
60 There were no declarations of interest.

OPEN FORUM
61 No items were raised in the open forum.

GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE UPDATE
62 The Committee received a verbal update from C. Stewart and A. Shaw 
(Greater Manchester Police) detailing the crime statistics from the last quarter within 
the Township.  

The Committee were informed of the overall crime figures relating to the Township 
and for each Ward and provided analysis of trends in crime and potential reasons for 
fluctuations.  Members were informed that a change in the way crime is recorded was 
reflected within the figures.

DECIDED – That the update be noted.

MINUTES
63 Further to minute 53 of the meeting held on 5th January 2016, Members of the 
Committee sought clarification that a report relating to the feasibility of Pennines 
Township receiving the income from Hollingworth Lake car parks would be brought to 
a future meeting of the Committee.

DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 5th January 2016 be 
approved as a correct record.

FLOODING PRESENTATION
64 The Committee received a presentation relating to flooding in the Township 
on 26th December 2016.  

The Director of Economy advised Members on the range of works being undertaken 
to improve resilience along with the measures that continue to be available to help 
those residents effected by the floods.  

S. Parkington (Environment Agency) informed the Committee of work undertaken 
with the Littleborough Civic Society in drawing up a resilience plan for Littleborough.  

DECIDED – That the presentation be noted.

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



LAND AT HARE HILL ROAD, LITTLEBOROUGH
65 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Economy relating to an 
area of land at Hare Hill Road, Littleborough.  The report sought approval to declare 
the land surplus to requirements and to commission’s site investigations to help 
establish the amount of any land remediation that would need to be carried out by an 
interested party ahead of any redevelopment, and to market the opportunity for sale 
on the open market, with the benefit of the site investigations.

DECIDED – That the report be deferred to the next meeting of the Pennines 
Township Delegated Funding Sub-Committee. 

Page 5



PENNINES TOWNSHIP DELEGATED AND FUNDING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
 29th March 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Aftab Hussain (Chair); Councillors Blundell, Brett, 
Butterworth, Dearnley, Emsley, Hartley, Kelly and Stott

OFFICERS:  T. Knight (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and M. Garraway (Resources 
Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  20 members of public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Clegg, Councillor Mir and Councillor 
Paolucci

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
11 Councillors Emsley declared a personal interest in the submitted application 
from Link4Life for The Big Games 2016, in so much as she holds the Portfolio which 
includes Link4Life.

Councillor Butterworth declared an interest in the submitted application from 
Link4Life for The Big Games 2016, in so much as he is a Council nominated member 
on the Board of Link4Life.  

MINUTES
12 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held 
2nd December 2015 be approved as a correct record.

PRESENTATION - YOUNG PEOPLE
13 The Sub-Committee received a report from Pennines Youth Groups detailing 
activities and events that the group had undertaken over the previous twelve months.  

DECIDED – That the presentation be welcomed and noted.

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2015/16
14 The Director of Neighbourhoods submitted a report that sought Members 
agreement for the allocation of Pennines Township Funds to funding streams in 
2015/16 and to consider applications for funding that had been submitted by groups 
and projects.    

The recommendations contained within the report were presented as management of 
the Pennines Township Fund is a function that is delegated to the Pennines 
Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee. Pennines Township Funds are 
allocated to projects/schemes that benefit the Township’s community and 
environment, and realise the Township priorities. The report enabled the Sub-
Committee to monitor and review the use of the Pennines Township Funds to ensure 
continued efficient and effective use of Township Funds.

Alternatives considered: Members were asked to support or decline proposed 
schemes within the submitted report.

The Sub-Committee received representations from applicants who addressed the 
Sub-Committee in relation their applications.

Public Document Pack

Page 6

Agenda Item 7



DECIDED – That (1) the expenditure, commitments and balances of Pennines 
Township Revenue and Capital funds as detailed in the appendices 1 and 2 of 
the submitted report be noted;
(2) The decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in appendix 3 of 
the submitted report be noted;
(3) The Sub-Committee notes that the Principal Townships Officer has 
assessed proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of 
the Pennines Township Fund, priorities of the Township and that any specific 
risks have been identified;
(4) The Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair and Vice 
Chair of the Sub-Committee, be given delegated authority to make decisions on 
any deferred projects;
(5) The Sub-Committee notes that any unspent and/or uncommitted funds will 
be reallocated to a central funding stream at the end of January 2016, for 
allocation to proposed schemes before year end to reduce the potential carry 
forward of funds during 2015/16;
(6) Applications for assistance from the Pennines Township Revenue and 
Capital Funds, as detailed in Appendix 5 of the submitted report, be determined 
as follows:

(6.1) Projects Fund - 
(a) PF/26/15 Jess Timperley – Approved £600,  Members requested that Jess 
run a training session, following the trip, for the young people that had 
presented an update to Members on Pennines Youth Work;
(b) PF/27/15 Quarry car park - application deferred to next meeting of this Sub-
Committee;
(c) PF/30/15 Biodiversity around Milnrow, Littleborough and Wardle - £1,590 
approved;
(d) PF/31/15 Wardle Bowling Green and Pavilion - £8100 approved (drainage 
£3420 wall £3240 steps £1440) to match fund an AMG funding bid;
(e) PF/32/15 Morris Dancing Championships - £986.70 approved;
(f) PF/33/15 Coach House Alarm system - £847.20 approved;
(g) PF/34/15 Sybil Newall Olympic festival - £1295 approved; 
(h) PF/35/15 Littleborough Arts Festival £1000 approved; 
(i) PF/36/15 Read and Feed Smallbridge Library pilot up to £5000 approved. The 
chair accepted this as a late item;

(6.2) Events Fund -
(a) PEF/06/15 Rushbearing Festival £3000 approved;
(b) PEF/07/15 The Big Games £1360 approved;

(6.3) Capital Fund -
(a) PTC/05/15 Lawflat TRO £3500 approved;
(b) PTC/09/15 Birch View TRO deferred to the next meeting of the Sub-
Committee;
(c) PTC/10/15 Wolseley St TRO refused on the grounds that there are already 
some restrictions in place;
(d) PTC/11/15 Ramsden Road TRO refused, on the grounds that there are 
already double yellow lines in place to protect the junction;
(e) PTC/12/15 United Reformed church £3500 approved;

(6.4) Armed Forces Fund -
(a) AFP/03/15 Memorial Benches - approved £4,348.50 + £1,449.50 = £5,798 two 
benches each for Littleborough, Wardle and Milnrow plus one for Shore and 
one for Wardle Bowling green and Pavilion providing the following conditions 
are met 

Page 7



 The new Memorial benches are in addition to the existing benches and 
none are removed

 All current benches are retained in their locality
 There are no changes to any existing dedicated memorial benches, 

including relocation
 Confirm design and location detail to affected Ward Councillors prior to 

order being raised.

Page 8



PENNINES TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
28th January 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor John Hartley (Chair); Councillors Clegg, Hussain, Mir, 
Paolucci and Stott

OFFICERS:  D. Ripa (Economy Directorate) and M. Garraway (Resources 
Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  5 members of public

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Brett, Councillor Emsley and Councillor 
Kelly

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
33 There were no declarations of interest.

CHANGE OF USE FROM BED AND BREAKFAST ACCOMMODATION TO A 
RESPITE CARE FACILITY AND DAYTIME TRAINING CENTRE FOR PEOPLE 
WITH LEARNING DISABILITIES (RETROSPECTIVE) AT 1 LEIGHTON AVENUE, 
LITTLEBOROUGH
34 The Director of Economy introduced planning application 15/00965 for the 
change of use from bed and breakfast accommodation to a respite care facility and 
daytime training centre for people with learning disabilities (Retrospective) at 1 
Leighton Avenue, Littleborough.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of residents of Leighton Avenue who 
addressed the Sub-Committee objecting to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of the applicant who addressed the Sub-
Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That planning permission be approved subject to conditions as 
detailed within the submitted report.

PLANNING APPEALS
35 DECIDED – That the planning appeals be noted.

Public Document Pack

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



PENNINES TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 23 March 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Hartley (in the Chair); Councillors Brett, Clegg, Emsley, 
Hussain, Kelly, Mir and Stott

OFFICERS:  P. Ambrose (Economy Directorate), M. Hardman (Resources 
Directorate) 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillor Dearnley and approximately 40 members of 
the public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Paolucci

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
36 There were no declarations of interest.

ERECTION OF SEVEN DETACHED DWELLINGS - LAND OFF STARRING WAY, 
LITTLEBOROUGH
37 The Director of Economy introduced planning application 15/00996 for the 
erection of seven detached dwellings on land off Starring Way, Littleborough.  

The Director of Economy reported to the meeting on amendments to the application 
in respect of layout and house types, including a reduction in heights and a 
repositioning of a gable wall in conjunction with Starring Road, as proposed by the 
applicant.  The Sub-Committee was also advised of the content of two letters of 
support and four letters of objection received since preparation of the submitted 
report.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of residents of Elmore Wood and Leighton 
Avenue who addressed the Sub-Committee in relation to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of the applicant’s agent who addressed 
the Sub-Committee in relation to the application.

Councillor Dearnley, as Ward Councillor, addressed the Sub-Committee in respect of 
the application.

DECIDED – That this matter be referred to the Planning and Licensing 
Committee for determination, with a recommendation that the Committee 
consider highways safety issues in conjunction with land ownership issues at 
the Starring Road/Starring Way junction being clarified; seek confirmation that 
the proposed development would not worsen drainage issues; and consider 
the requirement for tree planting. 

ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY TIMBER CABIN, STORAGE BUILDING AND 
CAMPING HUTS, REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING HUT AND AN INFORMAL 
CAMPING AREA - OGDENCLOUGH, HUDDERSFIELD ROAD, MILNROW
38 The Director of Economy introduced planning application 15/01415 for the 
erection of a single storey timber cabin to provide a reception area/office with 
showers for anglers, a storage building with toilets, four camping huts, the 

Public Document Pack

Page 10



replacement of an existing hut with camping hut, four pegs for angler use, and the 
creation of an informal camping area.

The Director of Economy reported to the meeting on amendments to the application 
as advised by the applicant such that the proposed development for consideration by 
the Sub-Committee now comprised only the erection of the storage building with 
toilets and the four camping huts, four pegs for angler use, and the creation of an 
informal camping area.  The Sub-Committee was advised that the Officer 
recommendation was to refuse the application for reasons 1 and 2 as presented in 
the submitted report, and for reason 3 as presented in the submitted report being 
amended to read “The proposal represents inappropriate development within the 
Green Belt, which is harmful by definition.  The applicant has failed to demonstrate 
that there are any very special circumstances which would outweigh the identified 
harm to the Green Belt and the harm to the character of the area and protected trees. 
The proposal is therefore contrary Policies G/D/2, D/4, LT/3, LT/6 and BE/2 of the 
adopted Rochdale Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework”.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of the applicant who addressed the Sub-
Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That the application be refused for the reasons 1 and 2 as 
presented in the submitted report, and for reason 3 as presented in the 
submitted report amended to read “The proposal represents inappropriate 
development within the Green Belt, which is harmful by definition.  The 
applicant has failed to demonstrate that there are any very special 
circumstances which would outweigh the identified harm to the Green Belt and 
the harm to the character of the area and protected trees. The proposal is 
therefore contrary Policies G/D/2, D/4, LT/3, LT/6 and BE/2 of the adopted 
Rochdale Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework”.

PLANNING APPEALS
39 The Sub-Committee was advised that an appeal had been lodged in respect 
of application 15/01300 for a two storey side extension and single storey rear 
extension, with alterations to the front entrance (resubmission) at 8 Shottwood Fold, 
Littleborough, and that an appeal had been dismissed in respect of application 
14/01279 for the installation of an ATM cash machine on the front elevation 
(retrospective) at 59 Church Street, Littleborough.

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

Page 11



PENNINES TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 13 April 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Brett (Chair); Councillors Butterworth, Clegg, Dearnley, 
Emsley, Hussain, Mir and Paolucci

OFFICERS:  P. Ambrose (Economy Directorate), J. Gilligan (Neighbourhoods 
Directorate) and M. Hardman (Resources Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Ten members of the public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Hartley, Kelly and Stott

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
40 There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES
41 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Pennines Township 
Planning Sub-Committee held on 28th January 2016 be approved as a correct 
record.

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT - CORAL MILL, SHAW ROAD, MILNROW
42 The Director of Economy reported on planning application 16/00232/FUL for a 
residential development comprising 69 dwellings and associated works at Coral Mill, 
Shaw Road, Milnrow.

The Director of Economy reported to the meeting on various matters arising since 
preparation of the submitted report.  Further to the reported consultation response 
from the Environment Agency, the applicant had submitted revised details as 
suggested within that response and the objection had now been withdrawn.  The 
Council’s Schools Service had responded to the consultation advising on pressures 
relating to both primary and secondary provision in the area, but that were also 
reflected generally throughout the Borough.  

The Committee was advised that the applicant had now made a number of further 
submissions relating to matters contained within the conditions proposed within the 
submitted report.  These submissions and their impact on the recommended 
conditions were as follows:-

Condition 2 – updated to refer to plan references for the updated site plan, 
Section 278 works and finished floor levels of the houses;
Condition 4 – to be deleted as the proposed site and finished floor levels had 
now been submitted and approved;
Condition 7 – a Remediation Strategy had been submitted by the applicant 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority, and the Condition would be 
updated to refer to the agreed remediation and enabling works strategy;
Condition 8 - a scheme for the proactive management of the identified riparian 
buffer zone (as shown on drawing SK411-PL-01 Rev A) alongside Piethorne 
Brook had been submitted by the applicant and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority, and the Condition would be Updated to include 
requirements of the Environment Agency;  
Condition 9 - a scheme for the design, construction and drainage of the new 
estate roads shown on drawing no. SK411-PL-01 Rev A (Planning Layout) 

Public Document Pack

Page 12



had now been submitted by the developer and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority, and the Condition would be updated to include the plan 
references which illustrate the details of the new estate road;
Condition 10 -   a scheme to provide temporary protective fencing or other 
means of enclosure around the boundary of the site with Piethorne Brook had 
been submitted by the developer and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, and the Condition would be updated to refer to temporary protective 
metal fencing as detailed in the submitted Construction Environmental 
Management Plan;
Condition 13 - a scheme for the design, construction and drainage of the 
junction of the new estate road and Shaw Road, together with off-site highway 
improvement works along Shaw Road as stated with the Stage 1 Safety Audit 
(prepared by Network Road Safety Limited, dated 4th February 2016) had 
been submitted by the developer and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, and the Condition would be Updated to include the plan references 
which illustrate the proposed new junction and off site highway works; and
Condition 15 - a Construction Method Statement (CMS) had been submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority and the Condition would be 
updated to reference the submitted and agreed Construction Environmental 
Management Plan.

The Director further recommended two additional Conditions to those presented in 
the submitted report -  

Condition 16 - to include a requirement that the development be carried out in 
accordance with the Acoustic Report to protect the amenity of neighbouring 
residents; and 
Condition 17 - to include a requirement that no development takes place until 
the applicant has implemented a Written Scheme of Investigation relating to 
archaeological works on the site.  

 
The Director of Economy further advised on the content of a submission received 
from Councillor Kelly in respect of this application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr P Ingham, resident of Shaw Road, 
who addressed the Sub-Committee in objection to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr S. Hughes, on behalf of the 
applicant, who addressed the Sub-Committee in relation to the application.

 DECIDED – That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions 
detailed within the submitted report other than as amended to reflect the 
update reports of the Director of Economy in respect of Conditions 2, 4, 7 to 10, 
13 and 15 to 17.

PLANNING APPEALS
43 There were no planning appeal issues to consider.

Page 13



Subject:      Pennines Township Committee – 
Delegation Arrangements 2016/17 

Status:  For Publication

Report to: Pennines Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Councillor Beswick Cabinet 
Member for Corporate and Regulation 

Date: Tuesday, 31st May 2016
 

Report of: Assistant Director (Legal, Governance 
and Workforce 
Author Email: 
michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk    

Author: Michael Garraway

Tel: Tel: 01706 924716

Key Decision: No

1 Purpose of Report1.1 To request the Township Committee to confirm its delegated 
decision making arrangements for the 2016/17 Municipal Year.

2 Recommendations

2.1      The Committee confirm the Sub-Committee structure of the Pennines Township
           Committee comprising of the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-
           Committee and the Pennines Township Planning Sub-Committee.

2.2      The Committee approves the delegation arrangements to the Pennines Township 
Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee, as contained within the Scheme of 
Delegation to Township Committees and the terms of reference of that Sub-Committee 
as detailed in Appendix 1 to this report.

2.3      The Committee notes that the terms of reference of the Planning Sub-Committee are 
contained within the Schedule of Delegation Arrangements for Development and 
Related Matters.

Reason for recommendation

2.4 The Committee agrees the delegation arrangements to ensure that decisions are 
made in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation to Township Committees of the 
Council’s Constitution.  Failure to agree to the delegation arrangements can open the 
risk that the Township Committee is unable to undertaken the functions of the 
Committee.

3 Background

3.1 The Scheme of Delegation appended to the Council’s Constitution delegates 
Executive and non-Executive functions to the Township Committees. The Council 
approved an approach for developing the role of Township Committees, giving 

Page 14

Agenda Item 9

mailto:michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk


increasing responsibility for budgets and day-to-day delivery of services. The 
Township Committees now hold responsibility for the delivery of the following Council 
services and are requested to confirm delegation arrangements to carry out these 
functions:–

 Environmental Management (excluding Refuse Collection and Recycling and 
Bereavement Services)

 Highways and Engineering
 Community Centres
 Libraries
 Development Control 
 Township Funds
 Leisure Projects - commissioning

3.2 Pennines Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee currently exercises formal powers 
as detailed at Appendix 1, as a  Committee for dealing with ’urgent’ issues on behalf of 
the Township Committee and for making grant approvals and decisions on devolved 
budgets and Township Funds.  

3.3 Pennines Township Planning Sub-Committee - the Sub-Committee works to a 
delegation scheme contained within the Schedule of Delegation Arrangements for 
Development and Related Matters. 

Alternatives considered

3.4 Township Committee, if so minded, could resolve to maintain arrangements as 
previously confirmed by the Township Committee, or adopt alternative Sub-Committee 
arrangements, in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation to Township Committees 
of the Council’s Constitution.

3.5 To not approve delegation arrangements could delay decisions being made by 
Township Committee and Sub-Committees.

4 Financial Implications

4.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report.

5  Legal Implications

5.1 The Committee is being asked to confirm its delegation arrangements to ensure that 
decisions are made in accordance with relevant and statutory procedural 
requirements.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications to this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 The Committee is being asked to confirm its Sub-Committee arrangements, in 
accordance with the Scheme of Delegation to Township Committees of the Council’s 
Constitution, to ensure that decisions are made in accordance with relevant and 
statutory procedural requirements.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 There no specific risks associated with this report

Page 15



9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no significant workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report.

There are no background papers to this report.

Page 16



Page 1 of 2

PENNINES TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE
(Pennines Township Delegated Sub-Committee)

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

1. To receive and consider the minutes arising from meetings of the 
Ward/Area Fora and other Township working Parties and related bodies, 
referring matter of concern to the Township Committee.

2. To exercise the following delegated powers as provided in the Scheme of 
Delegation to Township Committees
A. Authority to determine certain applications for Public Entertainment 

licenses and Gaming Permits.  Note - this delegation to be removed 
on full implementation of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling 
Act 2005

B. Determination of objections/representations in respect of the 
Appointment of Hackney Carriage Stands

C. Urgent designation of a Conservation Area
D. To deal with urgent matters within the remit of the Pennines 

Township Committee

3. To exercise under delegated powers the following powers of the Pennines 
Township Committee (as contained within the Scheme of Delegation to 
Township Committees)
A. Confirmation of Traffic Regulation Orders which are the subject of 

objection by persons directly affected by the proposal (i.e. in 
occupation of premises in the immediate vicinity of the proposal)

B. Closures or diversions of highways, including footpaths and 
bridleways, deemed to be contentious by the Director of Highways 
and Engineering

C. Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders (Road Traffic Regulation 
Act 1984, S.9)

D. Traffic regulation for special areas, for example, Country Park ( 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.22)

E. Pedestrian crossings, for example, pelican and zebra crossings 
(Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.23)

F. Street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.29)
G. Byelaws for street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, 

S.31)
H. Installation of road humps which are the subject of significant 

objections by people directly affected (as determined by the 
Director of Highways and Engineering)

I. Making Up of Private Streets – Part IX of Highways Act 1980
(i) The private street works code
(ii) General
(iii) The advance payment code

Page 14



Page 2 of 2

J. Power to determine applications to make Orders under the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981 to add footpaths to the Definitive Map

K. Power to make Footpath Creation Orders under the Highways Act 
1980 S.26

L. Reclassification of roads used as public paths under the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981

M. Power to designate public footpaths as cycle tracks under the Cycle 
Tracks Act 1984

N. Consideration of any other matter that may be referred to the 
Township relating to the regulation of highways, footpaths, 
bridleways etc. 

4. To have full responsibility for all aspects of devolution (including any 
related delegated budgets and Township Funds) and the implementation 
and development of the Township Plan.

5. To receive reports from ‘devolved’ and ‘influenced’ Services detailing their 
response to the Township priorities in the Township Plan and the 
development of their respective Service Plans to reflect those priorities.

6. To monitor budgets delegated to the Township level (including Township 
Funds), to ensure that all requirements and restrictions placed on any 
devolved funding are met or are capable of being met before any 
decisions are made.

7. To consider and comment on quarterly monitoring reports on devolved 
funding with a subsequent report to Pennines Township Committee.

8. To consider and determine all applications/ proposals to the Township 
Funds, ensuring that all requirements and restrictions placed on any 
devolved funding are met, or capable of being met, before any decisions 
are made.

Page 15



Subject: Pennines Township Committee 
Appointments 2016/17

Status:  For Publication

Report to: Pennines Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Councillor Beswick Cabinet 
Member for Corporate and Regulation  

Date:             Tuesday, 31st May 2016
 

Report of: Assistant Director (Legal, Governance 
and Workforce)

Author Email: 
michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk 

Author: Michael Garraway

Tel: 01706 924716

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To consider the appointments, for the 2106/17 Municipal Year of the Chair and Vice 
Chair of the Township Sub-Committees; the appointment of Members to Pennines 
Township’s Sub-Committees; and the appointment to various Working Groups and 
Other Bodies.

2 Recommendations

2.1       The Township Committee consider the composition and appointments of
            Members to the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub- Committee 

and the Pennines Township Planning Sub-Committee;

2.2       The Township Committee considers the appointment of Chair and Vice Chair of 
            the above mentioned Sub-Committees;

2.3 The Township Committee appoint Members to the Township Working
            Groups/Forums as detailed within paragraph 3.3;

2.4 The Township Committee appoint Members to the various “Other Bodies” as
Detailed in paragraph 3.4.

2.5 Reasons for Recommendation

The appointment of Sub-Committees is required to enable the undertaking of 
delegated functions

3 Background

3.1 At the Council meeting held on 18th May 2011 Council resolved that the allowances of 
the Chairs of Planning Sub-Committees be merged with those of Vice-Chairs of 
Township Committees. 

3.2 Members are asked to make appointments of Chair, Vice-Chair, Members and 

Page 14

Agenda Item 10

mailto:michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk


Substitutes to Township Sub-Committees.  In relation to the appointment of Substitute 
Members, the Committee are asked to note that the number of substitute Members 
appointed by a Political Group to any Committee or Sub- Committee should not 
exceed the number of ordinary seats held by that Group on that Committee or Sub-
Committee, or three Substitute Members in total.

(a) Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub-Committee
The Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any matter 
within the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is essential to take a 
decision.  Members are requested to determine the composition of the Sub-
Committee. In 2015/16 membership of this Sub-Committee comprised of all 
twelve Members of the Township Committee.

Members are also requested to formally appoint the Chair and Vice-Chair of 
the Sub-Committee.  In 2015/16 The Chair was Councillor Hussain and the 
Vice-Chair was Councillor Hartley. 

(b) Pennines Township Planning Sub-Committee
In 2015/16 nine Members and three substitute Members were appointed to the 
Pennines Township Planning Sub-Committee as follows: - Councillors Hartley 
(Chair), Brett (Vice-Chair), Clegg, Emsley, Hussain, Kelly, Mir, Paolucci and 
Stott.
 
Councillors Blundell, Butterworth and Dearnley were appointed as substitute

   Members.

Members are requested to formally appoint the Chair and Vice-Chair of the 
Sub-Committee.  In 2015/16 The Chair was Councillor Hartley and the Vice-
Chair was Councillor Brett.

3.3 Working Groups:
Members are requested to consider appointments to the following Working 
Groups/meetings.

(a) Ward Area Forum Meetings
The three Ward Members attend, as available, their respective Ward Forums.
In 2015/2016 only Milnrow and Newhey Area Forum continued to meet on a 
regular basis. In 2015/16 new Ward Pact Meetings were established in the 
other three wards (Littleborough Lakeside, Smallbridge and Firgrove and 
Wardle and West Littleborough).

(b) Township Services Groups
The Township Services Groups, which consider devolved services in line with 
the Township priorities. At the meeting of the Township Committee held 21st 
May 2013, Members agreed to a proposal to combine the People and Place 
Service Groups and to incorporate a Pennines Township informal scrutiny 
function within the terms of reference. In 2015/16 the membership of the 
Township Service Groups comprised twelve Members as follows: -

Service Group 1 (Highways and Environment) - Councillors Hussain, Emsley, 
Blundell, Brett (Chair), Butterworth, Clegg, Paolucci, Dearnley, Hartley, Mir, 
Kelly and Stott

Service Group 2 (Regeneration and Facilities) comprised Councillors 
Butterworth (Chair), Blundell, Brett, Clegg, Paolucci, Dearnley, Emsley, Hartley, 
Hussain, Mir, Kelly and Stott;

Page 15



 3.4 Other Bodies
Members are requested to consider appointments to the following bodies:-

(a) Ellenroad Trust Limited
The Pennines Township Committee is requested to appoint four Trustees to 
the Ellenroad Trust Limited. Councillors Brett, Butterworth, Kelly and Stott were 
appointed in 2015/16.

(b) MoorEnd Development Trust
The Township Committee is requested to appoint a representative to the 
Trust’s Committee of Management in compliance with the MoorEnd 
Development Trust’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, and in 2015/16 
Councillor Hartley was appointed.

(c) Township Older Person’s Champion
The Township Committee is requested to appoint one Member to serve as the 
Township Older Persons Champion. In 2015/16 this was Councillor Stott. 

Alternatives considered

3.5      There were no alternatives considered. The proper appointment of Sub-
Committees are required to permit the undertaking of delegated functions in 
accordance with statutory and procedural requirements. Appointments to Working 
Groups and Other Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to 
undertake and respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township.

4 Financial Implications

4.1      There are no financial implications to this report.

5  Legal Implications

5.1 The appointment of Sub-Committees is required to enable the undertaking of 
delegated Council functions and the Constitution of the Council requires the Township 
Committee to appoint Chairs and Vice Chairs of Sub-Committees.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications to this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 The Council has resolved to retain Township Committees and will devolve a range of 
services for the Township’s direction, which will be managed through the annual 
Township Plans by the Township Committee.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 Not applicable

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment
There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

Page 16



9.2       Equality/Community Impact Assessments
There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

There are no background papers for this report.

Page 17



Subject: Townships Plan 2015 & 2016 Status:  Publication

Report to: Heywood Township Committee
                    Middleton Township Committee 
                    Pennines Township Committee
                    Rochdale Township Committee                                                                                                      

Cabinet Member: Daalat Ali, Lead Member for 
Neighbourhoods & Community

Date: Monday, 23 May 2016
                    Thursday 26 May 2016
                    Tuesday 31st  May 2016
                    Wednesday 1st June 2016  

Report of: Director of Neighbourhoods

Author Email:    valery.white@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Val White

Tel: 01706 924858

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To ask Members to agree the priorities contained within the Townships Plan 
2015 & 2016, contained at Appendix ‘A’.

2 Recommendations

2.1   That members approve the Townships Plan 2015 & 2016.    

2.2 The plan takes Townships to the end of 2016, when a new Townships Plan will      
be developed in line with the new Corporate Plan, and in line with the Corporate 
Priorities.

2.3 Members are asked to approve the plan to allow the Townships to focus on local 
priorities in line with the Council’s three key priorities – Prosperity, People and Place.

3 Background

3.1 The Townships Plan includes strategies and objectives identified to meet the 
priorities identified by each Township. It will also guide and direct the use of 
devolved budgets, including the Township Funds, for the financial year 
2016/17.

3.2 Members will be consulted on development of a new three-year Township Plan 
following the introduction of the new Corporate Plan. 

4 Alternatives considered

4.1 No alternatives have been considered.

Page 18

Agenda Item 11



5 Financial Implications

5.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. Township funds are 
monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring reports will continue to 
be presented to future Committees on a regular basis.

6  Legal Implications

6.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

7 Personnel Implications

7.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

8 Corporate Priorities

8.1 Appendix ‘A’ details the strategy for each individual Township. The Townships 
Plan will be developed in line with the new Corporate Plan. The Townships 
Plan focuses on the Council’s three key priorities of Prosperity, People and 
Place.

9. Risk Assessment Implications 

9.1 There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 
report.

10. Equalities Impacts

10.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no significant workforce equality issues arising from this report.

10.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Townships Plan 2015 & 2016 Appendix ‘A’

Page 19



Pennine Township Plan 2015 and 2016 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New v3 Page  1  Of  5 11 May 2016

PTS014 To work with Members and Officers to look at developing Community Hubs 31 December 2016  
Objectives: Public Service Reform
Township Funds supported the development of the Smallbridge Community Hub. Pennines Township office has relocated to the hub. Libraries are 
utilised for consultations, community meetings and members surgeries. Pennines Township funds supported community cohesion events. Pennines 
Township funds contributed to improve equipment for the library. Pennines Township funds supported events in libraries, such as Easter, Tour de 
France and Christmas. Pennines Township funds has supported the development of an outdoor community growing area at Smallbridge Library.

PTS001 (1) Treat our customers fairly, and listen to their needs. Keep them informed, manage 
their expectations and deliver the services they need. (2) Involve our customers in shaping 
local services and tackling local issues    

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Focusing on our customers
Quarterly area forums are taking place in some wards, which include delivery of presentations from partners and community groups. Community 
meeting took place to discuss the former Akzo Nobel site. Officers continue to engage with groups such as LEAF, Pennines Business Forum and 
Wardle Society. Referrals have been made to Council Services and other partners including the Police and housing providers...A new GMP / RBC 
forum has taken place in Littleborough and Wardle, it is planned to launch a new forum for Smallbridge. 

PTS002 To promote and support libraries in making them an integral part of the community 
and recognised as a port of call for Council services/advice.

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Community Contact
Supported the development of Smallbridge Community Hub, the Pennines Township office is now located in the hub...Smallbridge Library now hosts 
meetings between members of the community and Elected members. Pennines Township funds have been allocated to projects promoting 
community cohesion. Support the development, accessibility and usage at Milnrow Library.

PTS003 (1) Promote Health Services to help people make healthier choices, regardless of 
their circumstances, and to minimise the risk and impact of illness. (2) Make mental health 
matter more       

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Increase peoples wellbeing via improved physical, mental health and wellbeing and encourage involvement
Pennines Township Funds allocated to various healthy living projects and sporting events. Pennines Township Funds have supported Shop Mobility, 
which helps to reduce social isolation. Pennines Township Funds have Supported a Prime Time Arts and Crafts event for people suffering from 
dementia and stroke victims.

P
age 20



Pennine Township Plan 2015 and 2016 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New v3 Page  2  Of  5 11 May 2016

PTS004 Support RMBC in delivering its Armed Forces Community Covenant. 31 December 2016 
Objectives: Armed Forces Community Covenant
Township Officers have supported events including Armed Forces Day/Week, Remembrance Sunday and funds have been allocated to assist the 
‘Tommy Teaches’ educational programme around WW1..Pennines Township Funds allocated to the improvements to memorials within the 
Township. Pennines Township funds allocated to purchase two new flag poles and flags. Pennines Township Funds funded a WW1 Arts project for 
primary schools.

PTS005 Encourage communities to take responsibility for suitable land and green spaces, 
improving the appearance of the public realm

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Community responsibility for some open spaces
Pennines Township funding assisted the Wardle Volunteers with the purchase of equipment to support their ongoing efforts to keep Wardle Village 
tidy. Township Funds allocated to the Pennines In Bloom bid, which secured a Silver Gilt award. Funding approved for the Friends of Hollingworth 
Lake to assist with Tour de France bedding, floating islands to attract and protect wildlife, a hare sculpture and an upgrade for the Willow area. 
Funds approved to extend Memorial Garden at St. Andrew’s Church, Wardle. Supporting the development of community open spaces in Milnrow 
Village.

PTS006 (1) Create maintain good quality open spaces and reduce grot sports.(2) Continue to 
utilise ‘Community Payback~ scheme across the Township, maximise publicity for our 
successes     

31 December 2016 

Objectives: A cleaner greener environment
Community Payback have supported the cleaning and maintenance of sites such as Hollingworth Lake, Milnrow Cricket Club and The Cray Estate. 
Township Officers report and monitor open spaces and grot spots via Environmental Management. Township Officers continue to utilise the 
Enforcement Team to tackle grot spot areas...Funding has been secured for an additional Environmental Management Pennines Clean and Green 
Team for 21 weeks.

PTS007 (1) To ensure that all parks and green spaces awarded the benchmark of excellence 
in recreational green areas are maintained at this standard, and to continue to develop new 
sites working towards Green Flag status. (2) Advertise parks forums  (3) Support park events     

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Maintain existing Green Flag Status; supporting  park groups in protecting our  parks and conservation areas
Events calendar developed to advertise meetings of Friends Groups, Community Groups and Area Forums. Township Officers attend Friends 
Groups meetings, supporting them with funding applications. Pennines Township funds utilised to support events such as Milnrow Carnival, Rush 
bearing, Tour de France. Explore the funding options to utilise local charities and trusts for open space improvements.

P
age 21



Pennine Township Plan 2015 and 2016 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New v3 Page  3  Of  5 11 May 2016

PTS008 Work with internal and external partners to promote the Pennines as a nice place to 
live. Use existing functions to identify and report  litter and grot spot areas

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Promote pride and responsibility in the Pennines 
Township Officers have attended the Pennines Business and Tourism Forum. Township Funds utilised for the purchase of a notice board in 
Wardle.S.106 monies identified to fund a finger sign-post for visitor information. Township Officers continue to monitor and report grot spots. 
Township Officer working with enforcement to tackle and prevent long standing fly tipping issues.

PTS009 Utilise and promote the townships countryside and lakes; maintaining the upkeep of 
walks, trails, woodland, signage and car parking facilities

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Raise the profile of the townships countryside and lakes
Community Payback carried out maintenance work at Hollingworth Lake. Township Officers organised and facilitated environmental management 
meetings to address requests for countryside and lake schemes.

PTS010 (1) Develop existing and new visitor activities to run throughout the year which will 
complement the surrounding areas. (2) Improve the marketing, branding and image of the 
Pennines to promote it is a destination to stay and visit. (3) Work with local businesses to 
improve information, communication, and promotion of services and activities to the local 
community. (4) Improve the quality of B&B, hotel, pampering, catering & entertainment 
facilities.       

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Develop the tourism & business package
Township Officers supported Small Business Saturday initiative to promote independent retailers. A blog was created to advertise shops events, e.g. 
Ladies late night shopping. Township Funds utilised to run a band contest in the run up to the Saddleworth Whit Friday band event. Township Officer 
facilitate meetings between Elected Members and Officer to discuss options for improving the tourist experience and appeal at Hollingworth Lake. A 
new grant fund is being developed to support Littleborough and Milnrow Town Centres. Pennines Township produce a quarterly Events Calendar 
that details and promotes the many events and activities available. Promote Ellenroad Engine House Steam Museum as a Boroughwide flagship 
tourist attraction.

P
age 22



Pennine Township Plan 2015 and 2016 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New v3 Page  4  Of  5 11 May 2016

PTS011 Work with Highways services to make improvements to local roads, reduce 
congestion and increase road safety.

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Highways Investment
Township officers identified and reported areas suitable for the Highways Investment Programme. Joint Service Groups taken place to ensure 
Members are updated and have an opportunity to report/discuss issues. Township officers requested weekly updates from Highways on road works 
across the Borough. Officers worked with Elected Members to identify highways improvement and safety schemes, allocating funding where 
appropriate..

PTS012 (1) Support and create opportunities for Neighbourhood planning through the 
production of neighborhood plans. (2) Publicise Community Right to Reclaim Land giving 
back rights to ask that under-used or unused land owned by public bodies is brought back 
into beneficial use. (3) Ensure S.106 monies are reinvested back into the Township                

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Neighbourhood Planning
Township Officers organised and facilitated Members Regeneration Meetings. Reports on S.106 monies and possible projects requested for 
Township Committee. Officers are assisting in the development of potential S.106 schemes. Pennines Township are supporting Wardle FC in 
creating a fit for purpose long term community asset..

PTS013 To work with Council Services and partners to progress the allocation and 
monitoring of Township funds, in line with issues raised within our community.

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Management of Township Funds 
Monitoring, evaluation and feedback of Township funded projects reported to Township Committee. Township Officers identified and supported 
community groups and services in applying for funding. Officers have worked with Elected Members to allocate funding using the appropriate 
delegated powers. Township Officers are developing new grant funds with additional money received from Economic Affairs. In 2014/15 financial 
year, Capital actual and committed spend was 90.68% and Revenue actual and committed spend was 95.6% of total budget received.

PTS015  Support the boroughs strategy for flood risk management 31 December 2016 
Objectives: Flood risk management
Township Officers co-ordinated information between services which led to the approval of flood basins into two areas within the Township to 
alleviate the risk of flooding

P
age 23



Pennine Township Plan 2015 and 2016 

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New v3 Page  5  Of  5 11 May 2016

PTS016 Publicity around positive outcomes, reductions in crime, new initiatives and PACT 
meetings

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Promote Safer Neighbourhoods
GMP has a standard agenda item at Milnrow & Newhey Area Forum to allow them to listen to concerns and feedback on initiatives. GMP have a 
standard agenda item at Pennines Township Committee. GMP attend and Chair the newly developed Littleborough and Wardle Community 
Meeting. The Milnrow and Newhey Pact will be incorporated into the Milnrow and Newhey Area Forum. A new pact / Forum will be developed for 
Smallbridge.

PTS017 Build on new and existing events/schemes to connect communities together. 31 December 2016 
Objectives: Community Cohesion
Pennines Township funds supported a multi-sports community cohesion event to build relationships within the community. Pennines Township funds 
supported a family fun day integrating activities from different cultures/traditions. Pennines Township funds supported the Pennines In Bloom Group 
and Wardle Volunteers.P

age 24



 

Subject: Pennines Township Funds 2016/17 Status: For Publication

Report to: Pennines Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods and Community

Date: Tuesday, 31 May 2016
 

Report of: Director of Neighbourhoods

Author Email:    sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Sharron Worrall

Tel: Tel: 01706 924802

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes/No
Section 151 Officer: Yes/No 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 A review of revenue and capital expenditure during 2015/16 and provide options for 
the allocation of funds in 2016/17.

1.2 Members to approve Pennines Township Funds terms and conditions, and agree 
delegation arrangements concerning funding decisions.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines Township 
revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2015/16 (Appendix 1 and 2).

2.2 Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2015/16 (Appendix 3) and 
evaluation information received to date for some of the projects funded during 2015/16 
(Appendix 4).

2.3 Members approve the allocation of Pennines Township Funds to funding streams in 
2016/17 as detailed in Appendix 5.

2.4 Members approve the terms and conditions for Pennines Township revenue and 
capital funds for 2016/17 (Appendix 6).

2.5 Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Pennines Township Funds 
2016/17 as detailed in 3.6 of this report.

2.6 Members agree any uncommitted/unspent funds be reallocated to a central revenue or 
capital funding stream as appropriate before the end of January 2017 to enable 
Members to spend/commit all Pennines Township Funds during 2016/17 financial 
year.

Page 25

Agenda Item 12



Reason for recommendation

2.7 Management of the Pennines Township Fund is delegated to the Pennines Township 
Delegated and Funding Sub Committee.

2.8 Pennines Township Funds are allocated to projects/schemes that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

2.9 To enable Committee to monitor and review the use of the Pennines Township Funds 
to ensure continued efficient and effective use of Township Funds.

3. Background

3.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines Township 
revenue and capital funds 2015/16 (Appendix 1 and 2).  The final outturn for financial 
year 2015/16 as agreed with Accountancy will be reported to the next scheduled 
funding committee.

3.2 A review of Pennines Township revenue and capital funds has been undertaken 
(Appendix 3).  Findings have influenced funding streams suggestions, the terms and 
conditions of the funds and the administration procedures for grant applications for 
2016/17.

3.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township Office relating to 
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of grants; 
whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their objectives and 
evidence their successes, and ensure the completed projects funded complied with 
the terms and conditions of the fund.  In 2015/16 grants awarded and projects funded 
made a difference to the local community with improvements to local facilities, 
increased social interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  All 
successful applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that they complete 
a Project Evaluation Form.  Members are asked to note the summaries of evaluation 
information received to date on projects funded as detailed in Appendix 4.

3.4 Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township Funds 
2015/16 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of Township Funds to 
funding streams in 2016/17 as detailed in Appendix 5.

3.5 Terms and conditions for Pennines Township revenue and capital funds have been 
updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and conditions for 2016/17 
(Appendix 6).

3.6 Members are asked to agree to the delegation arrangements for Pennines Township 
Funds 2016/17 as follows:

a) Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of 
Pennines Township Committee, may make decisions on the allocation of funds to 
all projects for £5,000 and under.

b) Pennines Township Officers will refer projects over £5,000 to the next Pennines 
Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee for decision.

c) Pennines Township Officers will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to 
Ward Councillors to seek their support and submit for delegated decision on 
confirmation of majority agreement to a project.  Any disputes concerning 

Page 26



allocation of Ward Funds will be referred to the next Pennines Township Delegated 
and Funding Sub Committee for decision.

d) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Pennines Township 
Delegated and Funding Sub Committee to ensure all Members are aware of 
projects that have been approved.

Alternatives considered

3.7 In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the allocation 
of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions.

4. Financial Implications

4.1 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use of the 
Pennines Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

4.2 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring reports will 
be presented to future Committees.

5. Legal Implications

5.1 Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the Council has 
made a commitment to consider the impact on service users of any changes to the 
funding  arrangements for the voluntary sector and to provide them with  at least three 
months’ notice of any  changes and liaise with them and any relevant stakeholders to 
mitigate the impact of reduced funding. Therefore, if members are inclined not to 
continue funding a the provision of a service provided by the voluntary sector, 
Members should be mindful of their obligations under the Compact.

6. Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

7. Corporate Priorities

7.1 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to meet their 
respective Township priorities and deliver actions to meet those priorities.  This report 
asks Members to consider how Township Funds 2016/17 are allocated in order to do 
this.

7.2 The Vision and Blueprint for Rochdale Council retains Township Committees and will 
devolve a range of services to Township direction, managed through annual Township 
Plans which are reviewed on a quarterly basis.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

Page 27



9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

Careful consideration has been given to the potential equality impact of the proposed 
projects.  No adverse impacts are expected and it is anticipated that the projects will 
benefit all sections of the community.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection
None N/A

Page 28



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE 2015/16           £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f (2014/15) 68,582       47.91% 80.84%

Base Budget 2015/16 81,500       

Income from other funds/services 2015/16 29,850       

Budget Available 2015/16 179,932     

Budgets transferred to services/actuals 86,199       

Commitments 59,255       

Total Actual + Commitments 145,454     

Budget Remaining 2015/16 34,478       

Forecast Outturn 179,932     

Potential under/overspend 2015/16 -                

Funds

 Balance 

b/f 2014/15

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2015/16

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments 

 Revised 

Budget 

2015/16 

 Actuals to 

Period        

 £ 

 Committed 

to Period     

£ 

 Virements 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 Virements 

to Services 

£ 

 Total to 

Period      

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2015/16       

£ 

Projects Fund 56,818       69,500       -                     126,318     36,962           50,156         (5,556)         32,195         113,756   12,562      

Events Fund 6,351         -                4,850             11,201       6,675             4,360           -                  -                  11,035     166           

Pennines Town Centres Fund -                -                25,000           25,000       3,250             -                  -                  -                  3,250      21,750      

Littleborough Lakeside Ward Fund 500            3,000         -                     3,500         1,725             400              -                  1,375           3,500      -                

Milnrow & Newhey Ward Fund 4,769         3,000         -                     7,769         430                3,769           1,868           1,702           7,769      -                

Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Fund -                3,000         -                     3,000         322                220              2,458           -                  3,000      -                

Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Fund 144            3,000         -                     3,144         1,563             351              1,231           -                  3,144      -                

Total 68,582       81,500       29,850           179,932     50,927           59,255         0                 35,272         145,454   34,478      

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2015/16

P
age 29



APPENDIX 2

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2015/16

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL 2015/16           £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f (2014/15)            37,074 41.11% 68.71%

Base Budget 2015/16            77,600 

Income/Adjustments 2015/16                      - 

Budget Available 2015/16          114,674 

Budgets transferred to other services/actuals            47,145 

Commitments            31,644 

Total Actual + Commitments            78,789 

Budget Remaining 2015/16            35,885 

Forecast Outturn          114,674 

Potential under/(over)spend 2015/16                      - 

Funds

 Balance b/f 

2014/15

£ 

 Budget 

2015/16

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments 

 Revised 

Budget 

2015/16 

 Actuals to 

Period        

 £ 

 Committed 

to Period     

£ 

 Virements 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 Virements 

to Services 

£ 

 Total to 

Period      

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2015/16       

£ 

Capital Fund          28,472          69,600                      -        98,072                 794          24,906              (514)          37,107      62,293        35,779 

Armed Forces Fund            8,309                    -                      -          8,309              1,915            6,288                    -                    -        8,203             106 

Littleborough Lakeside Ward Capital Fund -                  2,000           -                     2,000         1,779             -                  222              -                  2,000      -                

Milnrow & Newhey Ward Capital Fund -                  2,000           -                     2,000         834                -                  1                  1,166           2,000      -                

Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Capital Fund -                  2,000           -                     2,000         -                     -                  -                  2,000           2,000      -                

Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Capital Fund 293              2,000           -                     2,293         1,552             450              292              -                  2,293      -                

Total          37,074          77,600                      -      114,674              6,872          31,644                    -          40,273      78,789        35,885 

P
age 30



1 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 

 

 

 

PENNINES TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2015/16 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Projects Fund £69,500 
Base Budget 

 
£56,818 

b/f 2014/15 

Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address local issues/demands to benefit the local 
community and environment across Pennines Township. 
 
This fund was used to support 28 projects consisting of 15 community projects and 13 highways/environmental 
projects.  The variety of projects funded included improvements to Milnrow Library to facilitate the use of the first floor 
for community use; Assertive Outreach Project to deliver an early intervention street and community based outreach 
to young people at risk of substance misuse, exploitation, offending and associated harm; provision of handrails on 
Calderbrook Terrace to enable elderly residents and visitors to use the steps in a safe manner; half term activities for 
children and young people who attend the Cray Junior Activity Club; redesign of the car park on Edmund Street to 
provide two disabled bays and safer ingress/egress; wood sculptures in Hollingworth Lake Country Park; a 
programme of healthy activity, competition and support for young people in every primary and secondary school in 
Pennines with 12 weeks of rugby league coaching and a series of inter-school matches/festival; provision of additional 
seating for Smithy Bridge Library for events and meetings; upgrade the electrical connections at Littleborough 
Memorial Gardens; a project to encourage local people to engage with the natural environment delivered by Rochdale 
Field Naturalist Society involving guided walks to record species and discover the biodiversity; repairs to the perimeter 
walls, steps and drainage at Wardle Bowling Green and Pavilion; support for St Ann’s Morris Troupe members to 
compete in the Greater Manchester Morris Dancing Championships 2016; an event to celebrate Olympic archery gold 
medalist Sybil ‘Queenie’ Newall who was born at Hare Hill House; Read and Feed Project at Smallbridge Library to 
encourage local children to participate in the Summer Reading Challenge and eat healthy, and upgrade Ellenroad 
Engine House to enhance the visitor experience. 
 
An unallocated amount from this fund of £12,562 and committed funds of £50,156 will be carried forward to 2016/17. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund is allocated a base budget of £64,500 in 2016/17 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

 

P
age 31



2 

 

 
 
 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Ward Fund £12,000 
Base Budget 

 
£5,413 

b/f 2014/15 

Each Pennines Township Ward received £3,000 to allocate to smaller projects that would enable activities to take 
place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community and environment.  This fund has been 
useful in providing a budget for dealing with issues that necessitated a quick response with Ward Councillors 
identifying projects and approval being sought from the Pennines Township Chair and Vice Chair. 
 
This fund was used to support 11 projects consisting of 6 community projects and 5 highways/environmental projects.  
The variety of projects included the installation of an educational litter bin in Hare Hill Park to educate children to 
dispose of litter correctly and encourage recycling; a contribution to support Littleborough Brass Band competing in 
the National Brass Band Championships of Great Britain; hare and centipede wood sculptures in Hare Hill Park and 
contribution to the creation of a sculpture trail; provision of additional seating for Smithy Bridge Library events and 
meetings; Milnrow Memorial Park CCTV system to deter anti-social behavior and provide a safer environment for 
users of the park; contribution to planters on Rochdale Road, Firgrove to create an attractive floral display in the area, 
and a projector/screen to support Pennine Wine Makers Guild's programme of speakers and events. 
 
Funds of £5,556 were unallocated prior to financial year end 2015/16.  As agreed at Pennines Township Committee 
on 28 May 2015, these unspent funds were reallocated to the Projects Fund to be carried forward to 2016/17 together 
with £4,740 committed funds. 
 

Township Officers recommend each Ward Fund retains a base budget of £3,000 in 2016/17. 

Events Fund £0 
Base Budget 

 
£6,351 

b/f 2014/15 
 

£4,850 
Income/ 

Adjustments 

The Events Fund has been allocated to a number of events in Pennines Township that have taken place or planned to 
be delivered for the benefit and enjoyment of the local community.  These events have included Littleborough 
Rushbearing Festival celebrating the heritage of Littleborough with the traditional entertainment of folk dancing and 
music; Stevenson Square Christmas Festival with a lantern making workshop, sing-a-long carols and a visit by Santa, 
and a celebration of 50 years of civic twinned town friendship.  Events planned for 2016 are Link4Life’s Cultural 
Summer Fun Programme that will provide workshops for children and young people on topics based around music, 
heritage and crafts; a contribution to events and activities to be organised by Littleborough Events & Associations 
Forum and the Big Games 2016 that will provide opportunities for young people to experience diverse and exciting 
sports and leisure activities. 
 
Pennines Township received £4,850 from Rochdale Council’s Feelgood activities budget to allocate to events and 
committed funds of £4,360 will be carried forward to 2016/17 together with unallocated funds of £166. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Events Fund is allocated a base budget of £5,000 to contribute to Pennines Township events in 2016/17. 

 

P
age 32



3 

 

 
 
 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Town Centres 
Fund 

£0 
Base Budget 

 
£25,000 
Income/ 

Adjustments 

Pennines Township received a budget of £25,000 from Rochdale Council’s Economic Affairs Unit for the purpose of 
assisting the town centres within the Pennines Township to grow, prosper and diversify.  The Town Centres Fund was 
established to support creative ideas and to generate increased business and interest in shopping at the local town 
centres/high streets in Pennines. 
 
This fund was used to support 1 project.  Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2016 is an event to celebrate quality 
food and drink from local businesses with live cookery demonstrations and entertainment with the aim of supporting 
and promoting businesses in Littleborough. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Town Centres Fund retains a budget of £21,750 in 2016/17.  A review of this fund will be undertaken in consultation with 
Members concerning its future remit. 

 
 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Capital Fund £69,600 
Base Budget 

 
£28,472 

b/f 2014/15 
 

The Capital Fund has been used to deliver a range of projects that benefit the Township’s community and 
environment, and realise the Township priorities in 2015/16.  Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council 
Officers and the community. 
 
This fund supported 7 projects consisting of 2 community projects and 5 highways/environmental projects.  The 
variety of projects funded included the introduction of waiting restrictions on Eafield Road, Inghams Lane and Lawflats 
& Ramsden Road Junction; installation of a new bench at Railway Street/Huddersfield Road; provision of dropped 
kerbs to facility wheel chair access from Ashbrook Neuro Care Home along Kitter Street to Stevenson Square; 
renovation of Firgrove Pavilion to improve the facilities for local sports teams using the building and encourage 
increased participation in sports, and contribution of funds to Littleborough United Reformed Church for the installation 
of heating and ventilation to toilets and installing banister rails to bring into use the upper floor for community benefit. 
 
An unallocated amount from this fund of £35,779 and committed funds of £24,906 will be carried forward to 2016/17. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Capital Fund retains a base budget of £69,600 in 2016/17 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

 

P
age 33



4 

 

 
 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Ward Capital 
Fund 

£8,000 
Base Budget 

 
£293 

b/f 2014/15 

Each Pennines Township Ward received £2,000 to allocate to smaller projects that would enable activities to take 
place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community and environment.  This fund has been 
useful in providing a budget for dealing with issues that necessitated a quick response with Ward Councillors 
identifying projects and approval being sought from the Pennines Township Chair and Vice Chair. 
 
This fund supported 10 projects relating to highways/environmental issues.  The variety of projects funded included 
the installation of a litter bin on Victoria Street; a CCTV system to observe wild bird activity with the images relayed to 
a public screen located within the Visitors Centre at Hollingworth Lake; grit bins for Abbey Drive/Brown Lodge Drive, 
Mendip Drive and Heath Road; Milnrow Memorial Park CCTV system to deter anti-social behavior and provide a safer 
environment for users of the park; planters on Rochdale Road, Firgrove to create an attractive floral display in the 
area; a guard rail on Halifax Road to prevent vehicles mounting the kerb and children accessing the road at an unsafe 
location, and bollards on Union Road to prevent parking on the footway. 
 
Funds of £514 were unallocated prior to financial year end 2015/16.  As agreed at Pennines Township Committee on 
28 May 2015, these unspent funds were reallocated to the Capital Fund to be carried forward to 2016/17 together with 
£450 committed funds. 
 

Township Officers recommend each Ward Capital Fund retains a base budget of £2,000 in 2016/17. 

Armed Forces 
Fund 

£8,309 
b/f 2014/15 

Pennines Township received a budget of £20,000 for a four year period in 2014/15 for updating and enhancing 
existing memorials and introducing new memorials to commemorate the centenary of the First World War (1914-18). 
 
This fund supported 4 projects that included the installation of new planters at Littleborough War Memorial; restoration 
of Milnrow War Memorial; provision of World War One and World War Two themed commemorative benches to be 
installed near War Memorials across Pennines Township and two new plaques for Littleborough War Memorial to 
record the names of servicemen and women who have died in conflict since the two World Wars. 
 
An unallocated amount from this fund of £106 and committed funds of £6,288 will be carried forward to 2016/17. 
 

 

P
age 34



APPENDIX 4 

“The highlights were the pottery and the 
painting of pictures, also our fun day was 
fantastic.  One little boy of 4 said the club was 
amazing which made his Mum laugh.  Overall 
we think that every session was a highlight!” 
Deborah Davies 
Secretary/Treasurer 

Cray Junior Activity Club 

Recipient: Cray Junior Activity Club 

Project: Fun Activities and Healthy Lifestyle 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £919 

Cray Junior Activity Club provides children with the opportunity to learn different skills and 
meet other children from local schools.  Club membership is open to all children from four 
years old who live on the Cray estate and immediate vicinity.  The club enables the children 
and young people to work together in a group environment to increase their self-confidence 
and awareness of other children’s needs.  Children are introduced to indoor/outdoor 
activities in a safe environment and encouraged to participate in activities of art, dance, team 
games, healthy eating, etc and trips to various establishments, ie farms, galleries, rock 
climbing, etc. 

The project provided eleven weeks of activities, healthy eating and exercise consisting of 
painting on canvas, creating and decorating pottery, street dance and acro dance sessions, a 
day of sport with Link4Life, circus skills workshop, a visit from Owl Rescue, story writing with 
Ray Stern from Rochdale Libraries, games, making fruit kebabs and healthy sandwiches.  
The sports/dancing encouraged the children to be more active and learn the importance of 
teamwork.  Fruit kebabs and healthy sandwich making provided the children with an 
alternative to crisps, cakes and sweets as snacks.  Children realised their potential for 
creativity and imagination in crafting their own pot, writing their own story book that will be 

Page 35



displayed in libraries and painting was especially enjoyed as many children were not allowed 
to paint at home.  The biggest achievement was the friendships they made as children of 
different ages and schools participated in activities together and the 14 year olds helped the 
younger members. 

The club has attracted children from the wider area who initially attended the Fun Day 
before joining in the other activities in the weeks after.  Children from different schools have 
mixed well and parents chatted to each other when collecting their children.  The project 
provided positive activities for children and young people during the half term and created an 
opportunity to establish new friendships and support network for the local community. 

Page 36



Page 37



Feedback from parents 

“I would like to take this opportunity to thank you for the support given to the Cray Junior 
Activity Club.  I have a daughter aged 6 and son aged 9 who both attend the club. I think this 
club is very beneficial to the children and my daughter especially has come into her own 
since attending the club and looks forward to going every week. None of this could be done 
without the continued support and I thank you again for this” 

“I would like to say thank you for the funding to allow the Cray Junior Activity Club to take 
place. All four of my children go to the club, their ages range from 14 to 4 years. It’s nice to 
know that my children are mixing with children of different backgrounds and ages. Both of my 
eldest daughters are young volunteers for the club which they both enjoy to the extent of 
which Brooke was put forward for an award for young volunteer of the year 2015…she won. 
We’ve also seen a difference in confidence in both Brooke and Devon” 

Page 38



Recipient: Friends of Hollingworth Lake 

Project: Wood Sculpture at Hollingworth Lake 

Fund: Projects & Ward Fund 

Awarded: £1,100 

Friends of Hollingworth Lake aim to develop new and existing facilities at Hollingworth Lake 
Country Park to improve, create and restore the environment of the area and increase 
usage of this valued local beauty spot.  The Rangers have been working with local partners 
to create a community orchard at the back of Hollingworth Lake to enhance the country 
park and entice people to walk around and enjoy the views.  A Pavilion Orchard Event was 
held on 28 February 2016 with funding from Red Rose Forest’s Heritage Trees project 
through the Heritage Lottery Fund.  Red Rose Forest supplied a number of fruit trees 
including pear, damson, apple, quince and medlar for Green Volunteers and Rangers to 
help visitors, families and friends to plant their community orchard.  A choice of specimen 
trees was also planted in the Pavilion area as part of the arboretum project linked to the 
memorial scheme.  Friends of Hollingworth Lake wanted to create a feature at the new 
orchard and agreed upon a wood carving. 

The chainsaw sculptor Mike Burns was commissioned prior to the Pavilion Orchard Event 
to create a sculpture from a sycamore stump within the new orchard area as he often takes 
his inspiration from the shapes and forms of nature.  Each carving is based on the piece of 
wood used, therefore, the sculpture of an owl, mouse and apple is unique.  This beautiful 
new sculpture is a welcome addition to the art features based on nature located around the 
country park. 

”This scheme has created a great deal of 
public and media interest. Way more than 
anything we have ever done” 
Ray Smith 
Chairman 

Friends of Hollingworth Lake

Page 39



“Highlights have been seeing the girls excel at 
dancing.  Getting to see families enjoy time 
together…everyone supporting one another” 
Joan Jones 
Treasurer 

Milnrow Morris Troupe

Recipient: Milnrow Morris Troupe 

Project: Annual Morris Dancing Championships 2015 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £1,000 

Milnrow Morris Troupe was formed in 1983 to teach the traditional art of Morris dancing.  The 
troupe meets every Thursday at Milnrow Workmen’s Club to practice the three teams of 
Babies, Juniors and Seniors and socialise.  Members of the troupe all work extremely hard 
throughout the year to attend the annual championships.  Milnrow Morris Troupe is run by 
volunteers and the teams regularly participate in displays and carnivals. 

East Lancashire Morris Dancing Championships was held at Pontins in Prestatyn over the 
weekend of 9-12 October 2015.  The competition provided the girls/dancers from Milnrow 
Morris Troupe the opportunity to experience the excitement of participating in the annual 
championships.  Bonds and friendships were established with each other and other troupe 
members, and they learnt to deal with the euphoria of success and the disappointment of 
lose.  The Babies team achieved runner up troupe of the year and obtained first place in their 
category.  The Juniors obtained third place prize and the Seniors won troupe of the year, 
mascot of the year and a first place.  Individual prizes for their skills in marching and dancing 
were awarded to troupe members Elleouise Hopley, Courtney Roberts, Emma Walters, 
Chloe Walters and Aimie Foster.  Families and friends of the troupe members joined them at 
the competition and shared their successes and it was truly a community occasion. 

Page 40



“…a boost to their self-esteem when they 
are so pleasantly surprised by the quality 
of work they are able to produce” 
J O’Grady 
Chair 

Littleborough Painters 

Recipient: Littleborough Painters 
Project: Art for the Community 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £1,297.88 

Littleborough Painters is a group that promotes the enjoyment of art and the ‘Art for the 
Community’ project offered free art classes with tuition for a ten week period delivered by an 
accredited SAA artist.  Each participant was provided with a brush set, paints and paper 
funded with the grant.  Work completed was assessed and type of material undertaken was 
increased in complexity by number of colours used over time. 

The art sessions aimed to inform, encourage and inspire local people to try art both as a 
recreational hobby and an opportunity to take part in a social activity with others and this was 
achieved.  Two participants have subsequently joined Littleborough Painters and now attend 
art classes.  A bonus from ‘Art for the Community’ was an opportunity to display and 
showcase some of the participants work at an exhibition with Link4Life.  Littleborough 
Painters also organised a tutored watercolour workshop headed by renowned artist Jeremy 
Ford.  Twenty five artists and budding beginners attended and fellow artists from Norden and 
Middleton also joined in to support the community project. 

Page 41



“It brought the community together. It was 
a demonstration of shared memory. It 
reached across the generations and 
engaged the children” 
Reverend Canon Sharon Jones 

St Andrew’s Church (Dearnley) 

Recipient: St Andrew’s Church 
Project: World War One Schools Art Project 
Fund: Armed Forces Fund 
Awarded: £1,940.80 

St Andrew's Church (Dearnley) facilitated the involvement of children from local schools (St 
Andrew's, Smithy Bridge, Kentmere and St James, Wardle) in a project to bring together the 
community in a commemoration of the outbreak of World War One through music, art and 
literature.  Display boards were purchased with the grant to mount the work produced by the 
children.  As part of the curriculum, the children had produced poetry and prose, paintings 
and drawings around the themes of sacrifice, duty, peace and reconciliation.  The church 
archivist also researched war graves in Dearnley Graveyard and displayed details of the lives 
of those who lived in the parish and where they had fought. 

The church hosted a commemoration weekend with the building open to visitors to come and 
view the displays, an evening of poetry reading and music with Junior Blast and Holy Trinity 
Choir.  The weekend culminated in an act of remembrance and a candlelit procession to the 
war graves. 

The project has achieved a renewed interest in researching war graves and deeper 
understanding of the history and character of the community.  St Andrew’s Church plans on 
using the display boards at other events that promote community cohesion and make them 
available as a resource for other projects in the community. 

Page 42



“…joy and pleasure on the children’s 
faces as they shared their completed 
craft.  Positive feedback and requests for 
repeat of an enjoyable event for the 
whole family which is free” 
Shabana Afzal 
Senior Library & Information Assistant 

Littleborough Library

Recipient: Littleborough Library 

Project: Easter Fun Day Workshop 

Fund: Events Fund 

Awarded: £200 

Littleborough Library is a community hub for various groups/individuals and organisations 
with resources made available to help people gain access to free information, learn, 
improve their health and aspire.  The library is an integral part of the community in bringing 
people young and old from all backgrounds together to create a fun, safe and learning 
environment for everyone. 

An Easter Workshop was arranged as existing customers had expressed an interest in the 
library providing more themed activities and the event provided an opportunity to promote the 
services available at their local library to new customers.  The grant funded the purchase of 
craft materials and a facilitator for the activities at the workshop.  Children were encouraged 
to join a treasure hunt, name the bunny and use their imaginations to decorate polystyrene 
eggs with clay, feathers, beads, pipe cleaners, matchsticks, gems and gooly eyes.  The 
event has received positive feedback from the children and their parents/guardians with 
requests for more workshops in the future. 

Page 43



“…camera view of the bird activity has 

created much interest for the general 

public.  Some children have been totally 

spellbound” 

Ray Smith 
Chair 

Friends of Hollingworth Lake 

Recipient: Friends of Hollingworth Lake 

Project: Bird Box & Feeder CCTV System 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £630 

Friends of Hollingworth Lake aims to help provide a public space where environmental and 
wildlife issues are balanced with encouraging public access.  The Visitor Centre is the base for 
the Countryside Service, which manages the park, and contains displays, exhibitions and a 
café and it is considered a gateway to the beautiful surrounding countryside and wildlife.  The 
Friends of group are always looking for projects that will enhance the visitors’ experience and 
educate. 

A CCTV system to observe wild bird activity at Hollingworth Lake has been installed with the 
images relayed to a public screen located within the Visitor Centre.  A pine bird box fitted with 
a high resolution colour camera allows the public to watch birds nesting, laying eggs and 
raising a family undisturbed.  Another camera has been installed near a bird feeder to enable 
the public to view the wide variety of birds and other wildlife that visit the country park 
throughout the year.  The CCTV system is another initiative delivered by the Friends of group 
that will raise public awareness of the importance of conservation and the significance of the 
country park. 

Page 44



“I came across a new sculpture of a hare. 

What a fantastic piece of work this is. It is 

beautifully done by someone with skill and 

imagination. Its proud stance and 

expression is captivating” 

Visitor to Hare Hill Park 

Recipient: Environmental Management 

Project: Hare Hill Park Wood Sculptures & Educational Bin 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £1,375 and £500 

Hare Hill Park is the main recreational open space to the community of Littleborough offering 
facilities to enable a variety of recreational activities to a diverse range of groups and 
individuals.  The park benefits from having two play areas, a skateboard facility, two bowling 
greens, ornamental gardens and a bandstand that is a focal point for many events.  This 
beautiful Edwardian park with panoramic views of the Pennines has had many of its original 
heritage features restored such as the historical bandstand, drinking fountain and folly.  After 
years of continuous improvements to both the horticulture and the facilities, Hare Hill Park 
provides a safe and inviting green space which is well used and highly valued by the local 
community. 

Friends of Hare Hill Park approached the Council’s Environmental Management with a project 
to incorporate art in the park with two large sculptures (one hare and one centipede) and the 
creation of an educational sculpture trail starting from the chldren’s play area.  Twelve small 
sculptures would be installed around the park for children to discover with activity sheets 
made available in Littleborough Library and Hare Hill House.  Chainsaw artist Mick Burns was 
commissioned to carve the hare and centipede from reclaimed timber.  The hare sits proudly 
in a prominent place at the front of Hare Hill House and the centipede provides a beautiful 
tactile bench in the children’s play area.  Hare Hill Park visitors have the opportunity to walk 
through the park and discover art along the way. 

An educational talking litter bin in the shape of a jolly penguin has been installed within the 
children's play area in Hare Hill Park.  Ward Councillors supported this project as it provides 
the opportunity to educate younger park users to dispose of litter correctly and encourage 
recycling at a young age. 

Page 45



“We finally brought down the overgrown 

bushes today.  It was quite challenging in 

the wind and rain” 

Ian Tait 

Wardle Volunteers 

Recipient: Wardle Volunteers 

Project: Privet Hedge Project at St James Churchyard 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £90 

Wardle Volunteers continue to meet regularly to undertake environmental improvement 
projects to the public areas of Wardle Village.  Funds awarded to the group have enabled 
them to take on the demanding grounds of St James Church that took considerable work to 
get the overgrown area under control. 

In January 2016 the Wardle Volunteers completed the Privet Hedge Project in St James’ 
Churchyard.  Work involved reducing a large privet hedge from over ten feet to two feet in 
height.  The residual branches were then moved to another part of the churchyard to create a 
living hedge. 

Wardle Volunteers are an excellent example of empowering local people to make a difference 
to their green spaces and where they live to ensure the environment is safeguarded for the 
future. 

Page 46

http://www.wardlevillage.info/index.php/clubs-groups?id=86


“The band have gone from strength to 
strength. The future of brass, and other, 
music is safe in the hands of this school 
and this band association.  …they have a 
right to be proud, that others want to listen 
to them and that they have something very 
much worth listening to” 
Helen Chicot 

Parent of band member 

Recipient: Wardle High School Band Association 

Project: Wardle Academy Youth Band competing in European Championships 2015 

Fund: Ward & Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,000 

Wardle Academy is a school with a tradition in music, particularly brass band music.  Wardle 
Academy Youth Band was recognised as the best English band at the National Youth Brass 
Band Championships and they were invited to compete in the European Championships at 
Freiburg in Germany in May 2015.  The band were awarded a grant to contribute towards the 
travel and accommodation costs for 35 young people to travel and stay in Germany.  A local 
church provided rehearsal space before the competition on Sunday.  The band’s programme 
consisted of ‘Standards of St George’, ‘Old Hundredth’, ‘Shepherd’s Song’, ‘Patterns’ and ‘I’ll 
Walk with God’ and they compete against bands from seven different countries.  Wardle 
Academy Youth Band were crowned the winners of the European Championships 2015. 

Since winning the championships, Wardle Academy Youth Band have performed at the 
Birmingham Symphony Hall for the National Festival of Music for Youth and they were invited 
to march in the prestigious Lord Mayor’s Show.  This historical event celebrating its 800th 
anniversary saw the band parading along streets packed with over 6,000 sightseers and 
joining military marching bands, Chinese acrobats and numerous decorated floats led by the 
Lord Mayor in a gilded State Coach. 

Wardle Academy Youth Band represented their school, Township and Borough as a great 
place for young people to aspire to succeed in the arts. 

Page 47



Page 48



“The Saturday was a perfect day. The weather 

was superb, the support we had from the 
Traffic Management Team was excellent, the 
facilities in Hare Hill House were well used. 
Attendance was high and all the stall holders 
and performers expressed satisfaction with 
their takings. The Mayor of Rochdale declared 
that “most of Littleborough must be here”. 

Stephen Lister 

Chairman/Event Manager, LEAF 

Recipient: Littleborough Events and Associations Forum (LEAF) 

Project: Littleborough Rushbearing Festival 2015 

Fund: Events Fund 

Awarded: £2,000 

Littleborough Rushbearing Festival on 23-26 July 2015 provided the local community and 
visitors with the opportunity to celebrate the heritage of Littleborough with the traditional 
entertainment of folk dancing and music whilst also promoting the economy and tourism in 
the area.  This event is organised by the volunteers of Littleborough Events and Associations 
Forum (LEAF) working in partnership with community groups.  Oakenhoof Folk Arts organise 
the dancing, music and parade, and Friends of Hare Hill House and Friends of Hare Hill Park 
contribute to the running of the event and provide excellent facilities and support. 

The main attractions of the Hrafnsdale Herred Vikings combat demonstration and ‘living 
history’ display, climbing wall, assault course and musical performances were funded with the 
grant.  This contribution to the event allowed LEAF to use their funds to purchase assets to 
enhance the facilities available, ie radios, flags and banners, first-aid kits, stewards’ hi-viz 
vests and a large gazebo used on the Saturday in the park as a “home-base” for lost children 
and property.  The flags decorated Hare Hill Road for a considerable time before and after 
the event.  The festival had 30 commercial and charitable stalls for visitors to browse 
providing refreshments, entertainment and information.  A host of folk dancers and musicians 
entertained the crowds, and the Rushcart looked magnificent with its new livery and modified 
hangings. 

LEAF hope to extend the parade route to afford more people the opportunity to see it and 
introduce additional performances venues maybe on a rota basis.  The Littleborough 
Rushbearing Festival continues to evolve from year to year. 

Page 49



“241 contacts with young people. Over 60% 
of all young people engaged received brief 
interventions around substance misuse. 1 
young person was referred to Early Break for 
drug and alcohol treatment work. A clear 
need has been identified for this level of work 
however need additional funding for 
continuation” 

Shakila Hamid 

Operational Manager, Early Break 

Recipient: Early Break 

Project: Assertive Outreach Project 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,160 

Early Break delivers substance related treatment interventions to young people under the age 
of 21.  The service addresses the associated complexities in offending and health behaviours 
amongst young people.  Early Break has been an innovative provider of interventions since 
1994 through a clear person-centred ethos in which all stakeholders are valued and shown 
respect, proactive outreach and special projects in collaboration with partner agencies, 
specialist substance misuse screening and assessments with young people and families, 
alternative therapy provision, service user involvement and the award winning Holding 
Families Project where they address the impact of parental substance misuse on family life.  
The service has a strong social media presence, with national and international reach, offering 
harm reduction on a daily basis. 

The Assertive Outreach Project has delivered an Early Intervention street and community 
based outreach service across the Pennines Township, addressing needs of young people 
who are at risk of substance misuse, exploitation, offending and associated harm.  Brief 
interventions have been provided around substances and referrals/signposted young people 
into treatment services for their substance use and to services providing diversionary activity 
for young people.  The work has been delivered in the community across the Pennines 
footprint in parks, tram stops, on the street, etc.  The main objectives of the project were to: 

 Provide the skills, information and advice around health, education, family and offending
etc resulting in young people being empowered to make informed choices around their
health and lifestyle.

 Young people who ‘fall through the net’ are identified and offered support in addressing
substance use and associated needs.

 Assertive work in areas that are seeing an increase use of Novel Psychoactive Substances
(illegal/legal highs) or drug/alcohol use

 Improve the health and well-being of young people and reduce the risks that young people
take in relation to substance use and offending.

Outreach sessions were delivered on a Friday evening and would range from 6pm–9pm and 
also from 9pm to midnight.  Various areas in the Pennines were targeted by specialist 
substance misuse workers.  One of the main issues that staff did come across was the large 
number of youths congregating in Littleborough Town Centre and in and around Hare Hill 
Park.  On some sessions staff were able to speak to 40-50 young people in the evening. 

Page 50

http://www.earlybreak.co.uk/


Overview of the work carried out 
Many young people were not involved in ASB or under the influence however on some 
occasions groups of young people would be making a lot of loud noise in the area; staff were 
able to build relationships with young people who would often inform them of young people 
that were out that evening and under the influence of alcohol.  This helped staff to try to seek 
out young people to offer them support.  The train station in Littleborough also was a method 
of travel into Manchester for young people and often staff spoke to young people who were on 
their way to Manchester or coming back home. 

All young people that engaged with staff were provided information about the Early Break 
service and given advice on harm reduction and keeping themselves safe. 

One barrier to delivering the work over this period was the storms that Rochdale faced, this 
impacted on the numbers of young people seen on evenings when the weather was 
particularly cold, wet and windy. 

Many young people were engaged in the Wardle area and this enabled staff to promote the 
www.dontbeazombie.co.uk website which gives young people harm reduction advice around 
substances including NPS. 

On some occasions young people that were under the influence of drugs or alcohol did come 
into contact with the staff, again harm reduction messages were given and their safety was 
addressed by the team, this also resulted in a referral to the Early Break service. 

An area was identified where young people were using alcohol and some in depth work was 
delivered around personal safety, harm reduction and impact on local community. 

Another positive aspect of the work was that the staff were also able to speak to adults in the 
area about the work of Early Break and substance related issues in the area.  Staff were also 
able to assess areas they worked in for any drug using patterns and were able to find that 
cannabis use was taking place as empty snap bags and Rizla packets were found whilst 
delivering outreach.  Many young people engaged in education based work and also learned 
about the harms around NPS use.  This action has resulted in referrals coming into the service 
from the Pennines area for Illegal High use (NPS). 

Targeted work was completed up to the lead up to Christmas as many young people’s risk 
taking behaviour increases at this stage.  Leaflets were provided to young people in the area 
which included harm reduction advice, accessing the information website called 
dontbeazombie and provide contact numbers for various services that could offer crisis 
support. 

On two occasions staff were met with young people who were ‘rolling a joint’ – about to use 
cannabis.  Staff spoke to these young people about accessing Early Break for support and 
focused on the effects of cannabis and the legal implications of using cannabis in local parks 
or on the street. 

In one case a member of staff had seen a young person that was open to Early Break 
previously, the young person declined to speak to the member of staff but this intervention did 
help as the worker was able to contact the school to find out if wider support was required. 

Partnership work was also an element for this project and Early Break received some 
information from the Youth Service about possible solvent use in a local park. This resulted in 

Page 51

http://www.dontbeazombie.co.uk/


joint outreach work to try and seek out the group of young people however no evidence was 
presented that this activity was taking place. 

There were small pockets of young people that were seen using E-Cigarettes. 

A total of 16 outreach sessions were delivered in the Pennines Township and a total of 241 
contacts (including 4 contacts with professionals) were made with young people. 

A total of 157 contacts with males and 84 contacts with females, and ethnicity breakdown 
below: 
White British: 221 
White and Black Caribbean: 3 
White and Black African: 2 
Other Mixed: 1 
Pakistani: 3 
Caribbean: 1 
African: 2 
Other Black: 8 

Glynne Kirkham, Intelligence Analyst at Rochdale Police Station, provided comparative data in 
relation to young people crimes, and in the time that this work was taking place there was a 
14.4% reduction in ASB compared to the same time the year before.  Drug and alcohol crimes 
are low from GMP data, however, Early Break workers found that there was evidence of 
cannabis and alcohol use amongst young people and a significant reduction in all age drug 
and alcohol crime in comparison to the same time the year before. 

Workers’ perspective 
‘Many young people appreciated our presence. They wanted to talk to us and dispel myths 
that all youths are up to no good as they all were just congregating, not smoking cigarettes or 
anything’ 

‘It was evident that not all YP from what they shared with us were substance users, although 
some were or had been. I think the mixture of ages and genders that we come into contact 
with showed the younger ones/teenagers tended to be in bigger groups together, more so 
than the older ones’ 

‘We were a regular presence in the area and becoming a familiar face for some of the YP we 
seen on numerous occasions and were able to engage with as a result’ 

‘Apart from the obvious - giving advice, information and referrals, I think it's been useful in 
terms of understanding what is going on in the area and being able to pass this onto other 
services such as Sunrise and the Youth Service. Also, we met YP's who have previously been 
in service and although did not need a referral this time, we were able to 'check in' with them 
and remind them we are still around for support if needed and also gave brief advice post 
intervention’ 

Page 52



“It was really amazing and it helped me 
think about my career..about what I 
want to become” 
Year 9 Student 

Borough Skills Event 2015 

Recipient: Rochdale Council/Inspired Spaces/Rochdale Development Agency 

Project: Borough Skills Event 2015 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £500 

The Borough Skills Event 2015 brought together Year 9 students, business leaders and 
careers advisers on 11 March 2015 at Heywood Distribution Park where young people were 
given the opportunity to experience everything from a crime scene to a vehicle repair 
garage and a catering kitchen.  The event provided all students with an opportunity to 
explore job and training options within the local area as well as raise aspirations and 
awareness of the specialist industries across the Borough.  Township funds contributed 
towards the publicity of the event attended that was promoted extensive through social 
media, the press and direct contact with the schools. 

The main aim of the skills event was to help equip young people with knowledge of the 
opportunities available to them in the local area and give them a flavour of how these 
industries and careers work to help shape their futures, it can be said from evaluations 
received from participants this was achieved successfully. 

Sample of Evaluations Results 

 100% of staff felt the event was ‘Excellent’ or ‘Good’

 91% of staff felt their students came away from the event with more knowledge of the
local job opportunities available to them.

 64% of staff felt all local sectors of work were in attendance, whilst staff suggested areas
in which young people may be interested in moving forward

 79% of young people felt the activities offered on the day by the exhibitors were
‘Excellent’ or ‘Good’

 77% of young people believe they are now more aware of the job opportunities available
to them locally

 A majority of young people felt the event was fantastic and have suggested further
improvements they feel will make the Rochdale Skills Event even better moving forward

Page 53



Comments about the event 

“I think that the event has helped me decide what job role I 
want to do in the future because I was able to try out a few 
different types of activities and whichever one I enjoyed the 
most I will take into consideration in doing that activity as a 
job” 

“I was introduced to many other job opportunities which I 
haven’t considered before” 

“I didn’t have a good idea of the careers I can go into the 
skills, so the event helped me understand about different 
careers” 

“It was quite eye opening but I don’t feel that I had enough 
time to search for all the different jobs, it would be better if it 
lasted longer”  

“More information on salary, typical; working days and so 
on” 

“It was the best trip I have been on to teach me about jobs 
and apprenticeships I could apply for when I finish school” 

Page 54



APPENDIX 5

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2016/17

REVENUE FUNDS 2016/17 = £175,234

REVENUE FUNDS

Fund b/f 2015/16 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2016/17
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2016/17

Notes

Projects Fund £62,718 £64,500 £0 £127,218 £50,156 £77,062 Fund to resource larger revenue projects that meet the 

Township priorities.  Base budget of £64,500 with retained 

budget of £50,156 (see committed column) for projects 

approved pre 2016/17.

Events Fund £4,526 £5,000 £0 £9,526 £4,360 £5,166 Fund to resource events organised for the benefit of the local 

community.  Base budget of £5,000 with retained budget of 

£4,360 (see committed column) for projects approved pre 

2016/17.

Ward Revenue Fund £4,740 £12,000 £0 £16,740 £4,740 £12,000 Fund to resource smaller revenue projects that address local 

issues/demands for the benefit of the local community and 

environment.  Base budget of £12,000 will provide each 

Pennines Township Ward with £3,000 to allocate to revenue 

projects within their Ward.  A retained budget of £?? (see 

committed column) relates to projects approved pre 2016/17.

Town Centres Fund £21,750 £0 £0 £21,750 £0 £21,750 Fund received from Rochdale Council’s Economic Affairs 

Unit for the purpose of assisting the town centres within the 

Pennines Township to grow, prosper and diversify.  Grants 

will be made available to support creative ideas and to 

generate increased business and interest in shopping at 

local town centres/high streets in Pennines Township and 

improvements to frontages of businesses.

TOTAL £93,734 £81,500 £0 £175,234

Page 1 of 2

P
age 55



CAPITAL FUNDS 2016/17 = £145,129

CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2015/16 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2016/17
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2016/17

Notes

Capital Fund £60,685 £69,600 £0 £130,285 £24,906 £105,379 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the 

Township priorities.  Base budget of £69,600 with retained 

budget of £24,906 (see committed column) for projects 

approved pre 2016/17.

Ward Capital Fund £450 £8,000 £0 £8,450 £450 £8,000 Fund to resource smaller capital projects that address local 

issues/demands for the benefit of the local community and 

environment.  Base budget of £8,000 will provide each 

Pennines Township Ward with £2,000 to allocate to capital 

projects within their Ward.  A retained budget of £450 (see 

committed column) relates to projects approved pre 2016/17.

Armed Forces Fund £6,394 £0 £0 £6,394 £6,288 £106 Fund for updating and enhancing existing memorials and 

introducing new memorials to commemorate the centenary 

of the First World War (1914-18).  A budget of £20,000 for a 

four year period was allocated in 2014/15.

TOTAL £67,529 £77,600 £0 £145,129

Page 2 of 2

P
age 56



 

Form PT03 

1 

PPEENNNNIINNEESS  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001166//1177 
 

1. Purpose of the fund 

 

Pennines Township’s vision is to create sustainable urban and semi-rural communities in our Township 
where people feel safe and have a sense of community and belonging.  We want the local community to have 
access to appropriate housing, employment, leisure and community facilities, and proper social and family 
support. 
 
Pennines Township funds can be used to offer support to projects and organisations that are of direct benefit 

to the community and environment of the Pennines area.  Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, 

third sector organisations and area forums can submit projects on relevant application forms for funding from 

Pennines Township Funds. 

 

All projects must show how they will address the Pennines Township priorities of: 
 

 Place – To promote environmental, economic and social regeneration to benefit the local community. 

 People – Improved service provision to young people so they will have happier, healthier and more 

prosperous lives.  To improve the health of residents and deliver a better quality of life.  To reduce crime 

and the fear of crime so that people who live and work in the Pennines Township will feel and be safer. 

 Prosperity - Develop quality business and employment opportunities. 
 

2. What can be funded 

 

a) Projects aiming to meet Township priorities. 

b) Projects for which there is no other identifiable budget and are within the powers of the Council. 

c) Projects that supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 

d) Improvements to landscapes or public areas, eg providing additional seating, paving, railings, etc. 

e) Restoration of buildings or landscaping as part of a heritage scheme. 

f) Projects that can clearly demonstrate benefit to the local community such as providing bollards, fencing, 
lights, CCTV, etc. 

g) Projects that can be delivered with no additional revenue costs. 

h) Equipment hire or purchase such as IT equipment, sports equipment, arts and crafts materials, etc. 

i) Publicity materials for use in your project and recognises the contribution made by the Township. 

j) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 
k) Hiring of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 
l) Talented young athletes competing at national/international level supported by a recognised sporting body. 
 

3. What cannot be funded 

 

a) Projects that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces existing 
services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

b) Projects benefiting individuals. 

c) Improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain, unless there is a demonstrable wider 
community benefit or Pennines Township is responsible for the maintenance of the land. 

d) Promoting religious or political causes. 

e) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 
functions. 

f) Support for the general work of charities including fundraising events. 

g) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff. 

h) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 

i) Parties/day trips out. 

j) Purchase of alcohol. 

APPENDIX 6 

Page 57



 

Form PT03 

2 

 

k) Activities already started or purchasing items before funding is awarded. 

l) Purchasing or hiring of vehicles. 
m) Purchasing insurance. 
 

4. Terms and conditions 

 

a) The expenditure must be within the powers of the Council. 

b) The project must benefit the Township community or environment and meet at least one of the 
Pennines Township priorities (see section 1). 

c) Grants can only be made to non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank 
account. 

d) All grants must be spent/claimed within six months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 
made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Delegated and 
Funding Sub Committee’s discretion. 

e) The grant must be used for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use 
must be made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Delegated 
and Funding Sub Committee’s discretion. 

f) VAT on purchases relating to the project must only be included in the amount requested if it cannot be 
claimed back from HM Revenue and Customs. 

g) Applicants are responsible for ensuring that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), 
regulations (such as health and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place. 

h) Applicants are responsible for applying to Rochdale Council if they intend to hold a public event on 
Council owned land. 

i) Groups applying for a project to work with children, young people or vulnerable adults must have 
policies and procedures in place that explain how these people will be protected and remain safe. 

j) If public liability insurance is required for a community project, it is the responsibility of the group to 
ensure adequate insurance is in place. 

k) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded 
by Township Funds. 

l) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are 
not adhered to. 

m) The Council’s approval must be sought for the disposal or transfer of any items acquired with the grant. 

n) Successful applicants must complete and return a Project Evaluation Form and provide copy 
invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as 
detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Pennines Township Office within 
one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions 
being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies. 

o) Applicants who seek to be awarded funds from Pennines Township on successive occasions need to 
demonstrate how they have tried to secure funding from other sources. 

p) The Council reserves the right to add/change specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the 
purpose of the grant and/or the activities to be funded. 

 

5. Decision Making Process 
 

a) All projects must be submitted on an application form with supporting documentation. 

b) Application forms are checked by Township Officers to see if the project meets the terms and 
conditions of the fund. 

c) Projects not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application forms will be referred back to 
the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation.  At this point applicants may be 
requested to supply additional information. 

Page 58



 

Form PT03 

3 

 

d) Township Officers will refer projects for funding over £5,000 to the next Pennines Township Delegated 
and Funding Sub Committee for decision. 

e) Township Officers will use the officer scheme of delegation process for projects for funding of £5,000 or 
less. 

f) Township Officers will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Ward Councillors to seek their 
support and submit for delegated decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project. 

g) Any disputes concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Pennines Township Delegated 
and Funding Sub Committee for decision. 

h) Applicants will be advised of decisions in writing within 15 working days of the Pennines Township 
Delegated and Funding Sub Committee meeting. 

i) Township Officers will consult with the Chair and Ward Councillors about the future of a project when a 
Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 
not been re-elected. 

j) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 
 

6. Commissioning Process 
 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the specification 
and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed schemes/projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant service to ensure 
alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 
maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) Any variations in costs or outcomes by either party should be negotiated and agreed between the 
provider and the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee prior to incurring any 
additional costs. 

d) Where the Township wish to vary the specification – the service provider will identify the implications of 
the change, i.e. time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc. and additional costs, and agree the 
variations with the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee. 

e) Where the service provider may wish to vary the specification – the service provider should submit the 
variations to the Township Office with justification prior to incurring additional costs for consideration by 
the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee.  The Committee may decide not to 
accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if the 
Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township 
Funds. 

f) The service provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the cost 
of the project on the Township Office receiving evidence of the start of the project as agreed.  Stage 
payments may be agreed. 

g) The service provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 
the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

h) Where a service provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Pennines 
Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee may, after consultation with the service provider, 
withhold funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) Any unapproved additional costs incurred by the service provider must be borne by the service provider 
unless agreed otherwise with the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee. 

j) Service providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices. 

Page 59



Document is Restricted

Page 60

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 64

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	6 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee
	Minutes

	8 Pennines Township Planning Sub-Committee
	Minutes
	PTC 230316
	Minutes

	PTP 130416
	Minutes


	9 Pennines Township Delegation Arrangements 2016/17
	Enc. 2 for Pennines Township Delegation Arrangements 2016/17

	10 Pennines Township Committee – Appointments 2016/17
	11 Townships Plan 2015 & 2016
	Pennine Township Plan V1 110516

	12 Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 1 - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 2 - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 3 - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4 - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 5 - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 6 - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17

	14 Shaw Road, Newhey - Options for the Future use and Development of Land Belonging to Dr Chadwick's Trust
	Append. 1 for Shaw Road, Newhey - Options for the Future use and Development of Land Belonging to Dr Chadwick's Trust


